
Civic Offices
Merrial Street
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire
ST5 2AG

Contacting the Council:
Switchboard 01782 717717  .  Fax 01782 711032  .  DX 20959  .  Text 07800 140048 
E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Britain in Bloom: 
National Winner 2005
Silver Gilt Medal 2009 

Regional Winner
2003, 2004, 2008, 

2009, 2010
Gold Award Winner 

2002 - 2010

Contacting the Council:
Switchboard 01782 717717  .  Fax 01782 711032  .  DX 20959  .  Text 07800 140048 
E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Date of meeting Wednesday, 12th April, 2017

Time 6.00 pm

Venue Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, Merrial Street, 
Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG

Contact Jayne Briscoe 2250

Joint Meeting - Active and Cohesive
Communities Scrutiny Committee and

Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny
Committee

AGENDA

PART 1– OPEN AGENDA

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
To receive declarations of interest from Members on items included on this agenda.

2 Minutes of Joint Meeting of Active and Cohesive and Health 
and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - 6 March 2017  

(Pages 3 - 6)

3 Dementia Friendly Communities - Will Boyce, Chief Executive 
of Approach to present  

4 Dementia Friendly Swimming Action Plan  (Pages 7 - 12)
5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF HEALTH AND 

WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
(Pages 13 - 16)

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2017.

6 Minutes from the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee  (Pages 17 - 30)
7 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Any member of the public wishing to submit a question must serve two clear days’ notice, 
in writing, of any such question to the Borough Council.



8 URGENT BUSINESS  
To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100 B(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

Members: Councillors Bailey, Bloor, Gardner, L Hailstones, Jones (Chair), Loades, Naylon, 
Northcott, Spence, Sweeney, Walklate and Wright (Vice-Chair)

‘Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training / development  requirements from the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Committee Clerk at the close of the meeting’

FIELD_TITLE



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 06/03/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
1

JOINT MEETING OF ACTIVE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday, 6th March, 2017
Time of Commencement: 6.30 pm

Present:- Councillor Mrs Gillian Williams – in the Chair

Councillors Allport, Burch, Miss J Cooper, Dymond, Gardner, L Hailstones, 
Heesom, Jones, Naylon, Spence, J Tagg, Walklate, White, Woolley 
and Wright

Officers Andrew Arnott - Sport and Active Lifestyles Manager, Jayne 
Briscoe - Scrutiny Officer and Rob Foster - Head of Leisure and 
Cultural Services

Also in attendance – Duane Newton representing the Amateur Swimming 
Association, Will Boyce CEO of Approach and Jane Barnes
 Commissioning and Redesign Manager, Mental Health

Apologies were received from Councillor Frankish who was 
represented by Councillor Matthews.

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest stated.

2. APOLOGIES 

An apology was received from Councillor Frankish who was represented by 
Councillor Matthews.

3. DEMENTIA FRIENDLY SWIMMING - PRESENTATION FROM THE AMATEUR 
SWIMMING ASSOCIATION 

Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee received a presentation from Duane 
Newton of the Amateur Swimming Association who spoke with members on the topic 
of dementia friendly swimming.   Duane Newton emphasised the life enhancing value 
of swimming and the importance in building partnerships between leisure, health and 
the social care sector in relation to raising social awareness of dementia within the 
community   

Members questioned the additional cost of providing dementia friendly swimming 
sessions and Duane Newton gave examples of other authorities who had obtained 
funding from mental health bodies and from public health working alongside a private 
operator.

Will Boyce, CEO of Approach offered the support of his organisation and explained 
that the cost implications of becoming dementia friendly was relatively small and that 
it was more about an attitude of mind in supporting the client group and having an 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 06/03/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
2

empathic team of surrounding staff. He added that there was likely to be an increase 
in the number of people affected by dementia within the next 10-15 years. 

The barriers to dementia friendly swimming included single sex changing rooms, cold 
pool temperature, and access to the pool (especially steps), and the availability of 
pool attendants to help.

There were no special regulations in relation to dementia friendly swimming although 
the Amateur Swimming Association had developed a checklist for pools considering 
offering the sessions. Training in relation to dementia would be most beneficial if it 
was introduced across all areas of the pool e.g. pool instructors, café areas.  The 
context of training could be widened and extended to include other sectors of the 
community, for example schools. 

The Chair of Health and Wellbeing reported on the very positive visit to Crewe 
Lifestyles Centre operated by Everybody Leisure where members had viewed a 
session of dementia friendly swimming (Aqua relax). The sessions were held in a 
smaller pool with the temperature of the water well controlled and with a specifically 
trained lifeguard. Carers were allowed into the pool.  Councillor Jones added that the 
service users were extremely positive about the service and that there were distinct 
advantages to having a “gang” participate as they would encourage members to 
keep attending.

It was agreed that a Councillor should be nominated to champion the project.  It was 
also agreed that a steering group be established to develop an action plan for 
dementia friendly swimming and complete the checklist as a first step to ascertain 
how dementia friendly the Councils leisure facilities are.

The Head of Leisure and Culture was very encouraged by the level of support 
pledged for the initiative and considered that dementia friendly swimming could be 
introduced into Jubilee 2 relatively easily although he pointed out that if the initiative 
was to achieve optimum success this would depend on partnership working prior to 
the sessions. 

Members viewed the initiative as extremely positive and felt that it was “absolutely 
the right thing to do”.

Agreed That the CEO of Approach be invited to attend the next 
meeting to present on dementia friendly initiatives.

That a steering group be established to develop an action plan 
for dementia friendly swimming and complete the checklist as 
a first step to ascertain how dementia friendly the Councils 
leisure facilities are.

  
                                                

4. MINUTES OF A PREVIOUS MEETING 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 
2016 be agreed as a correct record.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 06/03/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
3

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

There were no members of the public present at the meeting.

6. URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no Urgent Business.

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

Next Joint Meeting - !2 April 2017 

COUNCILLOR MRS GILLIAN WILLIAMS
Chair

Meeting concluded at 7.45 pm





Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Generic Local Action Plan – Dementia Friendly Swimming Programme – Year 1
Themes – Needs Analysis, Networking and Consultation; Training; Provision; Marketing; Recruitment and Retention; Monitoring and Evaluation

RAG rated – Green – Action Completed Amber – In progress Red – No progress made to date

Theme/Subgroup Action Who involved? 
Possible partners?

Timeline/Deadline Approx. 
budget costs

Comments

Needs analysis/Networking/ 
Consultation

Establish working group for 
the programme and set date 
for  initial project steering 
group meeting

ASA
Local Authority
Local Pool Operator
Alzheimers Society
Adult Health and 
Social Care
Carers Organisation
Age UK

e.g. Jan 2015 N/A e.g. Completed – 1st meeting 
held dd/mm/yy

Hold first steering group 
meeting and establish Terms 
of Reference for steering  
group 

As above See above

Monitoring and Evaluation Set project targets for Yr 1 Project lead 
organisation
Project Steering group

End of Mar 2015 e.g. To be discussed at next 
PSG meeting 

Marketing and 
Communications/ monitoring

Provide monthly updates for 
ongoing feedback on project 
to the ASA

Project 
coordinator/lead

Needs analysis/Networking/ 
Consultation

Consult with other external 
partners in dementia 
services/older people services 

Memory Clinics
Peer support – 
wellbeing 

e.g. not engaged with 
partners outside project 
steering group yet



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

to identify structures in place 
for people living with 
dementia and their carers.

cafes/libraries
GPs/PH/CCG
Dementia Action 
Alliance

Identify current dementia care 
pathway/structure in 
Manchester

Dementia/older 
people service 
providers e.g. 
Alzheimers Society
Public Health 
Team/CCG

Needs analysis/Networking/ 
Consultation

Identify pools to implement 
programme in initially – 
flagship/tiered model

Specific Pools and 
identified lead staff 
members

Provision Establish pool time for 
availability for Year 1 pools 
and identify any current 
sessions that could be used to 
implement DF programme e.g. 
50+ sessions/sessions with 
high older people attendance

Pool Programming 
Group 
Local Authority
Pool Operator
Aquatic Officer

Monitoring and Evaluation Establish monitoring and 
evaluation process in line with 
research criteria

Research team
Project Coordinator
Leisure Centre staff

Training Arrange first Step Inside 
Training Day -date/venue/staff

Alzheimers Society
ASA
Pool Operator – 
management and staff

Training Identify appropriate staff for 
training  – from initial sites -  
FoH through to Poolside – 20 
places available

Pool operator
Local authority
Aquatic Officer
Centre staff 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Training Ongoing evaluation of Step 
Inside Training Tool – help 
tailor to leisure settings – 
provide constructive feedback 
following each session.

Project 
coordinator/lead
Leisure 
staff/workshop 
attendees
Trainers

Provision Consult with community 
groups about potential 
provision in pools – local 
needs assessment to identify 
possible gaps in provision and 
challenges to access

Dementia Cafes
Community user 
groups/support 
groups
CCG

Needs analysis/Consultation 
and Provision

Consult with people living with 
dementia and their carers – 
possible tours of initial 
pools/focus group

Alzheimers Society
Use local networks 
such as DAA to 
connect with other 
services supporting 
people living with 
dementia

Consultation Create a Service User 
Reference Group to help 
collect the views and 
perspective of people living 
with dementia and carers.

Alzheimers Society 
ASA
Project Steering Group 
partners

Monitoring and Evaluation Establish measures to be 
recorded for reporting back to 
DoH and programme 
evaluation prior to sessions 
been implemented into pool

ASA/DoH
Research team
Local authority
Pool operator

Identify method of data 
collection  -  liaise with 
partners to 
establish/implement this in 

ASA 
Pool operator
Research Team



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

centres and sessions
Monitoring and Evaluation Develop a Dementia Action 

Plan and submit through to 
the local Dementia Action 
Alliance to become an official 
member

Project Steering Group
DAA Coordinator
Alzheimers Society

All pool sites to complete their 
own mini Dementia Action 
Plan and submit to Alliance to 
join as member in their own 
right and to have access to 
‘WTBDF’ logo

General Managers at 
GLL sites
Local DAA Coordinator

Conduct facility checklist to 
assess how DF the pool sites 
are and identify any changes 
that could be implemented to 
the environment.

ALzheimers Society
Pool operator – 
General/Duty 
Manager
Project Coordinator

Needs Analysis, Networking 
and Consultation

Attend local and regional 
networking meetings and 
conferences e.g. Manchester 
DAA 1/4ly meetings

Local DAA
Age Friendly Locality 
Networks
Age UK
DF Communities 
meetings
Dementia 
Conferences

Provision/Consultation Consult with service providers 
about creation of a referral 
pathway through to targeted 
pool sessions.

Memory Clinics/GPs
Alzheimers Society
Age UK
Housing Providers

Marketing Produce marketing materials 
for sessions  e.g. pop up 
banners / leaflets / posters etc  

Project Coordinator
Marketing Team
Pool Operator



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

and then arrange printing and 
distribution as and when 
needed

Project Steering Group

Provision Introduce new DF sessions to 
selected pools. Ensure they 
are appropriate to target user 
group e.g. time of day/activity
Target: 3-5% of total number 
of people living with 
dementia in local population

Pool operator
Project Steering Group 
inc. Local authority
Alzheimers Society
Carers organisation

Include carers in DF Swimming 
sessions or through improved 
provision at pool sites - to 
encourage them into the pool 
e.g. when visiting with the 
person they care for and/or 
visiting pool on their own.
Target: 

Pool operator
Local authority
Carers Centre/Forum
Other services – Age 
UK/Alzheimers Society

Recruitment and Retention Engage with community and 
form sustainable links with 
partner organisations such as 
community 
groups/housing/transport 
providers to create a pathway 
through to the pool. 

PSGroup
Transport providers
Pool operator
Housing Providers

Recruitment and Retention Encourage centres to take on 
responsibility for community 
engagement and aiding 
retention of existing 
participants

Pool operator 
Lead staff member at 
pool e.g. Dementia 
Champions

Marketing Use regional/national events 
to raise awareness of DF Swim 
Programme e.g. Dementia 

Alzheimers Society
Marketing/Comms 
Team



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Awareness Week CCG
Marketing Consider having a local launch 

of the project at your first 
session/venue

Local authority
Pool Operator
Marketing/Comms 
team

Needs Analysis/Networking/
Consultation

Identify further Pool sites to 
implement DF Swim 
Programme in 
Target: Working with total of 
‘x’ pools across city.

Pool Programming 
Group
Local Authority
Pool Operator
Aquatic Lead

Training Set up further Step Inside 
training dates for Yr 1 along 
with CASCADE training 
workshop (delivered over 2 
days)

ASA
Project lead
Alzheimers Society
Pool operator – 
Aquatic Officer

Training/Provision Identify staff within sites to 
act as Dementia Champions – 
potential CASCADE trainers 
Target: Total of ‘x’ CASCADE 
trainers

Pool operator



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - 11/01/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 11th January, 2017
Time of Commencement: 7.00 pm

Present:- Councillor Dave Jones – in the Chair

Councillors Bailey, Bloor, Gardner, L Hailstones, 
Holland, Loades, Walklate and Wright

Officers

Also in 
Attendance

Jayne Briscoe - Scrutiny Officer

Marcus Warnes (Accountable Officer 
CCG)
Anna Collins (Head of Communications 
and Engagement)
Sue Baknak (Engagement Manager 
Healthwatch)
Councillor Mark Holland (representing 
Councillor Northcott)

Apologies Councillor(s) Northcott and Spence

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Loades declared an interest as a Staffordshire County Council Cabinet 
Support Member for Social Care and Wellbeing. 

Councillor L. Hailstones declared an interest as a District Nurse employed by 
SSOTP.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

Resolved: That, with the inclusion of apologies from Councillor L 
Hailstones the minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 
2016 be agreed as a correct record.

3. MINUTES FROM THE HEALTHY STAFFORDSHIRE SELECT COMMITTEE 

Resolved: That the minutes of the Health Staffordshire Select Committee held on 
2 December 2016 be noted.

4. MY CARE MY WAY- ENGAGEMENT BRIEFING 

Anna Collins (Head of Communications and Engagement) and Marcus Warnes 
(Accountable Officer) from the CCG presented a report concerning My Care, My way, 
Home First. The presentation set out the current position at the community hospitals 
in North Staffordshire with some beds temporarily closed to new admissions. a final 
decision had not been made by the Board and that this would follow the 12 week 
formal consultation period at the end of February 2017. 

The CCG officers set out the engagement principles together with the assurance and 
governance framework.  They reinforced the key messages with regard to the beds 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - 11/01/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
2

which had been commissioned to provide sub-acute medical care with the current 
model not resulting in best use of public money. They reported that feedback had 
been overwhelming in response to the engagement undertaken during November 
and this would be used to inform the next stage of the formal consultation process. 

Councillor Gardner expressed concerns that alternative provision should be 
operating safely prior to the removal of the provision at Bradwell.  In response, 
although acknowledging there were challenges around provision for specific cohorts 
with challenging behaviour, Marcus Warnes was confident that by the end of March 
2017 there would be an exit plan for all 64 of the patients who were occupying the 
commissioned beds.  The rest of the services would continue to operate from 
Bradwell Hospital until the end of March. Continuing Marcus Warnes reported that 
the difficulties experienced by Stoke on Trent City Council in commissioning sufficient 
care providers had been helped by additional funding and were now resolved. A total 
of 173 community beds would be retained to provide for rehabilitation or assessment. 
He added that no-one was waiting longer than 3 days, when medically fit, to be 
discharged.

Councillor Holland questioned the outcome from the consultation and how to ensure 
that the information generated was useful to inform future plans.  Anna Collins hoped 
to achieve a co-production and co-design mechanism by asking questions such as 
“what services would be appropriate in your area”.  Each of the community hospital 
sites were different and so may have different options, the optimum would be to 
achieve the best service model for each community.

Councillor Hailstones pointed out that patients would be discharged prior to March 
and felt that decisions had already been made and that the difference between beds 
and hospital needed to be clearly stated in consultations

Councillor Hailstones was also concerned that all palliative care beds had been 
commissioned by Stoke on Trent City Council and she strongly argued that local 
provision should be available within the Newcastle under Lyme area for its residents. 
Marcus Warnes explained that there was most need for a home based model for end 
of life care.  Councillor Hailstones pointed out that rural areas suffered from a lack of 
nursing care provision, adding that funding was the not the most difficult issue to 
solve.  Marcus Warnes stated that the CCG payed a premium to the providers AMG 
and Teesdale to provide this support.
Councillor Loades raised the issue of the difference between medical care and social 
care at home during consultation

The Chair asked how the ongoing engagement would link into the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) consultation and Marcus Warnes explained that although 
the consultation process had begun prior to publication of the STP the two were 
linked. 

Agreed: That the presentation be noted.

5. HEALTHWATCH STAFFORDSHIRE SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION 
PLAN UPDATE 

Sue Baknak, Engagement Manager with Healthwatch gave a presentation to 
members and set out the role of the organisation in acting as an independent voice of 
local people, championing quality health and social care.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - 11/01/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
3

Sue Baknak went on to explain the 5 year Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP) and the role of community engagement to gain service user feedback, raise 
awareness of the key issues affecting local health and social care services and to 
recommend improvements. Continuing, Sue Baknak introduced 3 documents which 
helped to support the work of Healthwatch and the STP:-

Together We’re Better: Guide to Engagement and Consultation
Become an Ambassador
Conversation Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent

The Chair referred to the engagement which had been carried out and which had not 
contained the detail of the STP because it had not been published at that time.  The 
STP would bring about huge change and was full of jargon and he asked what 
strategy Healthwatch would employ to communicate this complex set of big changes.

In response Sue Baknak stated that the document was a summary of the case for 
change, it identified work streams that needed to be addressed and the funding gaps.  
There had been presentations and Healthwatch had facilitated table conversations 
together with a Q and A session from an informed panel.  Healthwatch were also part 
of the communication group to ensure that the public were informed going forward.  

Sue Baknak was asked how bias within reporting from the Ambassadors would be 
eliminated and she explained that all of the feedback was made via a template, the 
feedback was structured and was analysed alongside a survey.

Councillor Loades asked whether Healthwatch had been asked to look at the 
ambulance service and specifically how members of the public could help to alleviate 
pressure on the A and E department.  Sue Baknak commented that the formal 
consultation was in the early stages and that the ambulance service would be 
included.

Continuing, Councillor Loades believed that district councils should use their powers 
to influence and improve public health. For example, the number of fast food outlets 
could be restricted under planning regulations.  Similarly, by helping to ensure that 
provision for care facilities such as a doctor’s surgery were included in the design 
stages for new housing estates. Licensing powers to restrict alcohol sales could also 
be brought into play.  The Chair added that this area of scrutiny could be included 
within the work programme of this Committee.

In response to a question from Councillor Gardner Sue Baknak explained that the 
STP had been signed off by Health England and that it was the responsibility of the 
STP Programme to set out the timeline. The Healthwatch role was to facilitate 
engagement, consultation should be transparent about what could be influenced and 
changed.  There was a statutory responsibility to consult but no corresponding 
responsibility to react.

In conclusion the Chair commented that Staffordshire Health Select Committee 
would be closely scrutinising the final detail of the STP and that the Select 
Committee had powers to refer to the Secretary of State. 

Agreed: That the presentation be noted.
        

 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - 11/01/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
4

6. TRANSFORMING HEALTH AND CARE FOR STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE ON 
TRENT 

This item was considered within agenda item 6.

7. DEMENTIA FRIENDLY SWIMMING - PROPOSED VISIT 

The Chair reported that prior to a presentation by Amateur Swimming Association a 
visit had been arranged on 20 January 2017 for the Chair and Vice Chair of this 
Committee to visit the Everybody Leisure Centre in Crewe to view a session of 
dementia friendly swimming. 

8. PROPOSED SCRUTINY BRIEF 

Councillor Gardner submitted a scrutiny brief relating to exercise referrals.  The Chair 
noted that this area of work also fell within the scope of work of the Active and 
Cohesive Scrutiny Committee and he proposed a joint meeting with the Active and 
Cohesive Committee as the lead.

Agreed: That the Active and Cohesive Scrutiny Committee be asked to take 
the lead in a joint meeting with this Committee and to consider this scrutiny brief. 

9. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

There were no members of the public present.

10. URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no urgent business.

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the joint meeting with the Active and Cohesive would be agreed and 
members informed as soon as possible.  The next scheduled date for Health and 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee was 12 April 2017.

COUNCILLOR DAVE JONES
Chair

Meeting concluded at 8.50 pm



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 31 
January 2017 

 
Present: Kath Perry (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Michael Greatorex (Vice-
Chairman) 
George Adamson 
Charlotte Atkins 
Ian Lawson 
Shelagh McKiernan 
Trish Rowlands 
David Smith 
 

Stephen Sweeney 
Conor Wileman 
Ann Edgeller 
Janet Johnson 
David Leytham 
Stephen Smith 
 
 

 
Also in attendance: Alan White 
 
Apologies: Chris Cooke, Philip Jones, Diane Todd, Maureen Freeman, 
Barbara Hughes, Andrew James, David Jones and David Loades 
 
PART ONE 
 
102. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none received. 
 
103. Transforming Cancer and End of Life Care Programme 
 
The following representatives were in attendance for this item; 
 
Andy Donald – Stafford and Surrounds CCG and Cannock Chase CCG,  Accountable 
Officer 
Sharon King – Head of Programme 
Paul Giles – Patient Champion 
 
The CCG Accountable Officer introduced the report and made the following points; 

 It had taken four years to get the Programme off the ground.  

 The objective was for professionals to focus on the individual, to improve patient 
experience and survival rates. 

 In terms of end of life care, it was important to provide choice and enable people 
to have a good death. 

 There had been a focus on the methodology rather than the objectives of the 
Programme. Some were ideologically opposed to the Programme and had 
concerns regarding privatisation.  

 In January 2015 the Programme had been paused following the collapse of the 
Uniting Care contract in Cambridge and Peterborough.  



 

- 2 - 
 

 There had been a number of reviews which had confirmed that the objectives of 
the Programme were correct and that the methodology was not unreasonable 
Procurement and legal advisors had considered NHS England’s reviews, and the 
programme had taken on board the recommendations. 

 A number of internal reviews had identified that the Programme was on track and 
NHS England had given the go ahead to move forward with it. 

 A lot had been learnt from the Uniting Care contract and this would inform the 
next steps. 

 There was no guarantee that the procurement would progress to award of 
contract therefore alternative options were being considered. 

 It was important not to lose site of the need to make improvements for the 
population. 

 It was hoped that the cancer care procurement and approval process would 
conclude by summer 2017. 

 A cancer consortium bid would be subject to robust review and be subject to 
national sign off. There were two major NHS providers involved in the consortium. 

 The focus was on ensuring better outcomes for patients. 
 
The Patient Champion stated that initially he was part of the Cancer Not For Profit group 
and had been opposed to any privatisation of the NHS. He had recognised however that 
work was required to change the way in which care was provided. He referred to the 
appointment system and the wasteful use of resources. Patients had been involved in 
the Programme and had challenged the process the whole way through to ensure that 
the focus remained on patients and carers. It was important to ensure that the NHS saw 
the person and not the disease or statistic. Patients had a pivotal role in the Programme. 
It was important for people to live and die well. 
 
The Chair thanked the Patient Champion for his contribution and noted his 
commendable role in the process. 
 
A Member referred to the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) and that one of the reasons discussed for poor outcomes 
was late diagnosis. It was queried how the procurement process would have an impact 
on this? 
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that earlier diagnosis was one of the objectives of 
the programme. Improving screening and identifying people earlier were key priorities 
for the programme. People would be managed through the system more effectively. 
 
It was queried how many people would be screened in the future and why all CCGs 
were not involved in the programme? 
 
The Head of Programme referred to the variable take up of cancer screening. Breast 
cancer screening take up for example was better than the take up of bowel cancer 
screening. In different areas of the county there were different challenges, for example 
in Cannock and in Stoke-on-Trent, the one year survival rates for the CCGs were not 
improving quickly enough. 
 
A Member asked where screening took place? 
 



 

- 3 - 
 

The Head of Programme explained that screening is commissioned by Public Health 
and takes place in a variety of settings.  Screening uptake varied, for example patients 
were not using kits sent through to them in the post as part of the national bowel 
screening programme. There had to be novel ways of working with patients. Local GPs 
wanted to use different approaches but there was not always the support from the 
national screening programmes to do this. 
 
The Accountable Officer explained that; 

 It was hoped that that a Service Integrator would bring in new ideas and invest in 
the system to do things differently. There would be discussion about different 
local approaches with the consortium for the first two years, considering what 
would need investing in to increase screening rates. The provider would be 
expected to invest time and resources into this.  

 In 2012 the health service was fragmented. South East Staffordshire and Seisdon 
Peninsula CCG had not seen the programme as a priority as patients in the area 
went out of the area, to Trusts in Birmingham, Derby and Wolverhampton, for 
care. The programme was now part of the STP but other CCGs could not be 
brought into the procurement process at this stage as the process would have to 
begin again, however improvements in the system would benefit patients and 
other CCGs may wish to adopt changes to pathways. 

 
A Member queried how the introduction of a Service Integrator would save money? 
 
The CCG Accountable Officer clarified that the first two years of the contract would not 
be funded by the NHS, it would then be self financing. The intention was to do more with 
the resources that were available and create savings. Over the lifetime of the contract, 
the increase in cancer incidence suggests that ten percent more people will be on a 
cancer pathway.  By doing things differently and investing in new developments there 
would be some return, but the NHS did not have the resources available to develop 
services. In terms of end of life care, £10-20 million is spent on emergency admissions 
which could be avoided if the system worked better. There needed to be investments in 
for example hospice care, and savings could then be made by the Service Integrator. 
 
A Member asked who would be responsible for the delivery of the Programme? 
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that cancer and end of life performance was not 
good. The contract however, once in place, would set robust outcomes. Outcomes 
would be measured to ensure that the individual could receive care which was better co-
ordinated. Patient experience would be an important measure. Four years had been 
spent refining the anticipated outcomes. 
 
A Member expressed concern that NHS services were not effective at reaching hard to 
reach groups. The effectiveness of screening programmes and if targets were being met 
was queried? 
 
The Accountable Officer referred to Cannock, where spend on cancer care was higher 
than many CCGs but outcomes were worse. Services were not reaching those that they 
needed to do so. 
 
A Member sought clarification on who would drive through the Programme? 



 

- 4 - 
 

 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that this would be the CCGs and the Service 
Integrator’s responsibility. Outcomes would also be monitored through the STP. There 
would be a new Senior Responsible Officer in place from April 2017 when he stepped 
down from his Accountable Officer role. There would be joint accountability. 
 
A Member commented that the process had taken a long time to develop and asked 
what impact this had had on the current offer? It was suggested that the implementation 
would be subject to change over time. 
 
The Accountable Officer gave assurances that things had started to improve as 
technology and drugs improved. There was still a wide gap however in the outcomes of 
the population of Staffordshire and the rest of the UK and this was not good enough. 
 
The Head of Programme referred to one of the benefits of the work as being the 
development of a cancer commissioner across Staffordshire. Good practice in the north 
had been extended into the south and vice versa. In addition there had been improved 
engagement with patients and better follow up support for cancer patients. The 
philosophy of co-design had been built into current pathway re-design. The National 
Strategy for cancer, published in the previous year, had compared well against the 
outcome framework of the Programme. The Staffordshire Programme had been 
stronger in terms of patient voice than the national expectations. 
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that the contract would include criteria to ensure that 
national changes could be incorporated so that the contract would move with the times. 
It there were national changes which meant that the contract was no longer feasible 
then following the two year period there could be a break in the contract. The contract 
was however future proofed as national changes could be taken account of. It was a 
complicated arrangement which had not been done before and therefore had a level of 
risk but the process would be subject to a three stage national review before it could be 
signed off which would give confidence that it could be successful. 
 
A Member asked if there would be an initial cash injection into the service integrator or 
services?  The Accountable Officer explained that there was growth each year in the 
NHS and this would go into the value of the contract.  
 
It was queried why there were worse outcomes for residents in Cannock?  The 
Accountable Officer referred to the demographics of the area, the industrial past and 
late presentation by patients. Over the last two months there had been a significant 
increase in patients being referred on a two week cancer pathway. Many people in the 
areas were diagnosed with cancer as a result of visiting an Accident and Emergency 
Department. 
 
A Member; 

 Explained that GPs often took a watch and wait stance rather than referring 
people. It was queried if GPs would receive training to recognise the early signs 
of cancer?  

 Commented that the thirty one and sixty two day cancer targets were not being 
met. It was queried if there were enough staff in hospitals? It was suggested that 
if there were more clerical staff it would improve the patient journey.  



 

- 5 - 
 

 Referring to end of life care, suggested that some GPs were reluctant to let go of 
patients and enable them to die at home. 

 
The Head of Programme referred to national awareness raising campaigns. There was 
work with GPs through the local Cancer Implementation Team. GPs and Consultants 
had developed a local plan for how to improve care. There was a dedicated nurse in the 
north who would audit GP practices and identify why there was variation. The same role 
was being recruited to in the south. There were dedicated end of life GPs who were 
considering how to ensure advanced care planning and the interface between primary 
care, consultants and nursing homes. 
 
The Patient Champion referred to the Champion’s role in asking the same questions as 
Members and setting challenging outcomes. It was important to get care right from the 
outset. The first responsibility was often seen as to save lives but this was not always 
appropriate for a dying person. It was important to educate, inform and let go of the 
patient.  
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that it was important to ask patients what they 
wanted rather than placing them in a system. 
 
The Patient Champion emphasised that some patients did not want anymore 
intervention but that the NHS wanted to intervene. There were better ways of doing 
things. 
 
A Member asked if there would be more investment in cancer diagnosis clinicians?  The 
Accountable Officer confirmed that there had been an increase in resources. The 
system needed to do better, with resources invested in new technologies. 
 
A Member queried the use of mobile scanners in Staffordshire?  The Accountable 
Officer clarified that the CCGs did not commission these services as this was the 
responsibility of NHS England. Screening could be offered for everything but there was 
evidence that there was not always benefit. Some screening should be targeted. 
 
A Member; 

 Referred to the STP and proposals to cut £13 million from cancer and end of life 
care.  

 Queried how robust the contract would be, how often it would be reviewed and 
what would happen if the outcomes anticipated were not achieved?  

 Referred to difficulties in getting to see a GP in Cannock. It was queried if GPs 
were educated in making referrals and received training?  

 Noted that in deprived areas there were higher incidences of cancer. 

 Commented that many patients in Cannock went to Walsall Manor Hospital for 
treatment. Concerns were raised that the two local STPs were not in sync with 
one another.  

 Queried if the STP would result in increased investment in cancer care or a cut in 
provision? 

 
The Accountable Officer clarified that; 



 

- 6 - 
 

 The purpose of the STP was to ensure sustainable services in Staffordshire by 
2021 and that resources could go further. The intention was not to reduce cancer 
services but to use resources better to provide cancer care.  

 A key outcome of the contract was improved patient experience and the Service 
Integrator had two years to deliver this. The outcomes were clearly stated and 
would be robustly monitored.  

 There would be improved survival rates in the long term. Macmillan and Patient 
Representatives had wanted to ensure the appropriate incentives and penalties 
were included in the contract.  

 Some cancer cases were so rare that GPs might only see one case in a lifetime. 
There needed to be enough information to undertake investigation. More people 
should be diagnosed through the two week referral pathway. GP Education is 
important to ensure that they are acting on the most up to date guidance.  

 In Cannock Town, more appointments were being offered as part of the Prime 
Minister’s Challenge Fund and it was hoped that this could be extended.  

 It was acknowledged that there was no connection between the Black Country 
STP and the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP. Royal Wolverhampton 
Hospital Trust is involved in the Consortium so were fully involved in the 
development of the pathway across the cancer care system and work was 
aligned. 

 
Clarification was sought on whether finances would be cut? 
 
The Accountable Officer confirmed that the provider was being asked to work within the 
resources presently available. The provider would be expected to make efficiencies. The 
Consortium would invest significant money in the first two years to change the system 
and would want to see up to ten percent return on investment.  
 
In response to a further question, the Accountable Officer clarified that £286 million had 
to be saved by the STP by 2021 to make the system more sustainable. The amount 
invested in cancer care would increase but in the longer term services would have to be 
more efficient. He did not envisage that in four years time more money would not be 
invested in cancer care. 
  
A Member raised concerns about misdiagnosis and late treatment and the Accountable 
Officer referred to the need to use resources effectively to identify the reasons for 
problems. 
 
A Member queried patient access via GP referral to the MRI Scanner at County Hospital 
and the Accountable Officer explained that it was important for the scanner to be used 
appropriately.  
 
In response to the Chair’s question it was confirmed that whether the procurement 
process had been concluded or not it could be helpful to report back to the Committee in 
March 2017.  
 
RESOLVED:- That the Committee be kept informed of progress and developments in 
relation to the Transforming Cancer and End of Life Care Programmes. 
 
104. Drug and Alcohol Service Proposals 



 

- 7 - 
 

 
The Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Wellbeing introduced the report, highlighting 
that;  

 The paper summarised the recommended new configuration of drug and alcohol 
treatment services for 2017/18 and beyond, following the funding reductions 
associated with the Better Care Fund. 

 The plans represented the best way to use the available resources with high risk 
people not required to wait. 

 Consultation had been carried out to look at ways to mitigate the impact.  

 Concerns had been expressed by clinicians, the community and providers. 

 Department of Health estimates suggested that there were between 150,000 and 
200,000 adults in Staffordshire who regularly drank above the recommended 
levels. 

 There was an estimated 35,000-40,000 ‘clinically’ dependent drug users (around 
5000) and drinkers (around 30,000) in Staffordshire. 

 Around 4000 dependent drinkers/drug users had sought and been engaged in 
treatment services each year. 

 The proposed changes would mean that fewer people would receive treatment 
but every effort had been made to maximise access to services given the 
availability of resources. 

 There had to be a balance between capacity and activity. 

 A prioritisation framework using a RAG system had been developed and it was 
hoped that ‘Red’ clients would be treated with minimal waiting times. 

 In order to maximise efficiency and activity, the range of community (non 
residential) interventions would reduce significantly. 

 It was a very difficult decision to make and the consequences were very serious. 
The Cabinet Member understood the possible implications. If more could be done 
then it would be. He had been confronted with the financial challenge and was 
doing all possible to support social care activity. 

 
The Director of Health and Care confirmed that the proposals had been developed in 
close conversation with providers. The proposals were not without risk but were thought 
to be the best way of doing things next year. A session with clinicians was held 
providing an opportunity to understand concerns and confirm what would happen so that 
it could be undertaken smoothly. 
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager referred to the balance between providing a 
service capacity that meant high risk people were not required to wait and ensuring that 
the service was able to cope safely and effectively with the number of people in 
treatment. The proposed solution was  to reduce the number of people in treatment at 
any one time to a maximum of around 1700. It was however difficult to predict demand. 
There had to be a balance between quality and activity. It had been proposed that 
capacity was utilised from the Intensive Family Support Service to ensure that no client 
with child safeguarding concerns was required to wait for access to the general One 
Recovery Services. The flexible use of staff could be used to mitigate the risk to other 
high risk clients such as those within the criminal justice system. Previously intervention 
had focussed on a cross section of the client’s needs but going forward there would 
need to be referrals to other services such as Job Centre Plus to address a clients 
needs. This approach was not without risk. 



 

- 8 - 
 

 
A Member referred to the excellent services which had been developed. In 2005 it had 
been a very disorientating service. It was queried how outcomes would be measured, 
including the impact of increased waiting times and on safety? It was noted that 
prevention work would not be undertaken. It was queried if there would be an impact on 
just the acute or on those starting their drug and alcohol journey? 
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager referred to the range of outcomes that could be 
measured. The number of people accessing services, the number of lives changed and 
the quality of experience would be measured. In addition there could be consideration of 
wider implications such as overall crime figures and increased risks to children etc. If the 
number of incidents increased then there would have to be a change to the balance of 
monitoring with a greater focus on risk.  
 
The Cabinet Member referred to the local and national implications. Unlike in Scotland, 
health and wellbeing was not a licensing consideration in England.  
 
A Member referred to the need for minimum alcohol pricing. 
 
A Member expressed concern that District/Borough Licensing Committees had no 
choice but to grant a license. He raised concerns that there would be no drug and 
alcohol prevention services in Staffordshire and queried provision in Cannock. 
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager clarified that the premises was going in Cannock 
so there would no longer be a dedicated building but services would remain. 
 
A Member queried if the Council was still pursuing the CCGs for the money that should 
have been transferred to the County Council through the Better Care Fund (BCF)? 
 
The Director of Health and Care confirmed that £16.5 million had come across to the 
County Council to protect social care and there had been no disagreement about this. 
The additional £15 million had however not been agreed upon which had left a shortfall 
in this years Medium Term Financial Strategy. Savings had to be made this year and 
next year. There were preparations to sign the BCF again. £16.5 million was guaranteed 
next year and the deficit had been dealt with. Drug and alcohol services were not core 
statutory services. The Public Health ring fenced grant had to have regard to these 
matters but these services were not a core legal requirement. 
 
Concerns were expressed that the changes would affect the most vulnerable in society 
and their families. Although £3 million in savings was anticipated in the long term it 
would cost a lot more as people ended up in the criminal justice system and qualified 
people providing the existing services were lost. The potential impact on the suicide rate 
was referred to. It was queried if there was anyway in which Recovery Services could be 
maintained? 
 
The Cabinet Member confirmed that the Recovery Service was being maintained but 
would be reduced. Reference was made to the STP and the ambitions in the system. 
Issues had to be addressed as a whole system and the impact of the proposed decision 
on other parts of the system was acknowledged. It was hoped that once changes had 
been made the system would still be good enough. It would be the hardest decision that 



 

- 9 - 
 

the Cabinet Member had had to make and the system was working hard together to 
address the impact.  
 
A Member referred to the impact that drugs and alcohol could cause but also that there 
was a limited amount of resource available and that this should focus on recovery. It 
was a small cohort of individuals who could negatively impact on the lives of others. 
 
The Cabinet Member referred to demographics and that drinking amongst eighteen to 
twenty four year olds had reduced.  
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager referred to the heroin epidemic of the nineteen 
eighties continuing to have an impact. There would be continued investment in 
safeguarding and the criminal justice system. Resources would be directed at those who 
were a priority. 
 
A Member suggested that the Committee should make representations to the 
government regarding alcohol licensing practices. 
 
The Chair suggested that the Committee could write to MPs raising the issue and this 
was agreed. 
 
A Member referred to the difficulty in making the decision. The impact on children could 
not be judged on the financial costs. It was important to highlight the impact of the 
funding cuts. 
 
The Cabinet Member referred to the work of the Police and Crime Commissioner in 
addressing domestic violence issues. 
 
A Member sought clarification on the services provided by One Recovery. 
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager explained that prior to July 2014 there were thirty 
contracts with fifteen different organisations. This lead to a fragmented pathway for 
clients and key workers to navigate. In July 2014 services were brought under one 
contract providing separate residential and community services. This created 
efficiencies and more people were able to receive better treatment as there was a focus 
on the whole person and not just on addiction issues. Integrated specialist intervention 
came under one contract which could then subcontract. There would be further 
integration as pathways became more streamlined. 
 
The Member sought clarification on the role of the Burton Addiction Centre? 
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager confirmed that this helped people to sustain 
progress where as One Recovery incorporated all services. Burton Addiction Centre 
was focussed on recovery and was part of the pathway. 
 
The Member commented on the good outcomes achieved by Burton Addiction Centre 
and raised concerns regarding a lack of beds going forward. It was queried if there was 
the right balance? 
 



 

- 10 - 
 

The Senior Commissioning Manager referred to the consensus reached between all 
parties in acknowledging what could be provided with the resources available. 
 
It was queried by a Member where the One Recovery Service in Cannock would be 
provided from? 
 
The Senior Commissioning Manager undertook to provide the information following the 
meeting. 
 
In response to a question from the Chair the Cabinet Member confirmed that the 
decision would be taken the following day. 
 
The Chair confirmed that the Committee would support the process going forward. 
 
RESOLVED:- That; 

 The feedback from the discussion be used to inform the Cabinet Member’s 
decision. 

 Information regarding the location of the One Recovery Service in Cannock be 
provided to the Committee following the meeting. 

 
105. Summary of Joint Health Scrutiny Accountability Sessions 2016-17 
 
The Scrutiny and Support Manager introduced the report summarising the 
arrangements for and outcomes of the Joint Health Accountability Sessions held in the 
2016-17 municipal year and requested Members views on the way forward.  It was 
confirmed that scrutiny of the STP would be undertaken by the Healthy Staffordshire 
Select Committee as the County Council must take the lead on this. The informal joint 
scrutiny meeting with the City of Wolverhampton Health Scrutiny Panel on the 13 
February 2017 was referred to. 
 
The Chair suggested that any recommendations that the Committee had regarding the 
Accountability Sessions should be considered in the Work Programming in the new 
municipal year.  
 
A Member raised concerns that if the meetings were expanded to incorporate more 
Members from District and Borough Council Health Scrutiny Committees and/or 
Members from other neighbouring local authorities then the meetings would be too large 
to Chair effectively and interaction would be limited, reducing the opportunity to 
scrutinise the Trust effectively. Shorter Self Assessment reports were suggested. It was 
felt that providing access to a webcast of the meetings negated the need to host them 
around the county. 
 
A Member suggested that as there were only six NHS Trusts in Staffordshire, each one 
should continue to be held account at Accountability Sessions and they were keen that 
the Committee continue to hold the sessions. It was recommended that the Trusts 
should report on what they planned to do in the future and on any proposed changes or 
developments rather than just providing past data. A more direct line of questioning was 
suggested and a more informal arrangement to meet with the Trust Chief Executives,  
 



 

- 11 - 
 

The Scrutiny and Support Manager explained that relationship management meetings 
which had been held with Trust representatives in the past had resulted in no formal 
actions or recorded minutes which could be accessed by the public. Concerns raised by 
Members had been emailed to the Trusts who were then asked to address these in their 
presentations to the Committee. 
 
A Member expressed concern that the Committee did not know everything.  The Chair 
confirmed that this was the reason why Trusts had been requested to attend 
Accountability Sessions.  
 
It was recommended that the Committee should prioritise which Trusts to hold to 
account. The 2017/18 Committee needed to decide its own Work Programme and not 
be restrained by the legacy of the previous municipal year’s committee. There needed to 
be a clear focus on where there were issues. There was no support for holding meetings 
in the District/Borough locations. Comments regarding minimising the size of the 
Committee for Accountability Sessions were supported. It was noted that the District and 
Borough Councillor representatives on the Committee were not regularly attending and 
that there was a need for committed representatives on the Committee as there were a 
large number of meetings.  
 
The Committee Chair confirmed that Members views on the Work Programme were 
sought at every meeting. 
 
A Member referred to difficulties in travelling elsewhere to go to meetings and that it was 
more convenient for them to be held in County Buildings. It was also emphasised that 
the meeting membership should not become too large. 
 
A Member raised District and Borough Council attendance and the Scrutiny and Support 
Manager confirmed that only four of the eight representatives were present. In the Joint 
Code of Working, it was stated that it was the Chairman of the District/Borough Health 
Scrutiny Committee who was to be the Member of the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee but this could be revised.   
  
Another Member gave support for hosting meetings in County Buildings. Reference was 
made to the Self-Assessment reports provided by the Trusts and that some discussed a 
Trust as a whole rather than distinguishing the performance of the individual hospitals 
within that Trust which was frustrating. Issues such as Accident and Emergency waiting 
times, winter pressures and hospital discharge were very important and would be 
important to consider individually. 
 
The Scrutiny and Support Manager explained that the Committee could include these 
items on the Work Programme as a focussed area of concern rather than holding 
uniform sessions. The Self-Assessment report acted as a mini quality account. It was 
queried if Healthwatch Staffordshire might be able to assist with highlighting issues of 
concern to the Committee? 
 
The Chief Executive, Healthwatch Staffordshire confirmed that there was more work that 
Healthwatch could do with the Committee regarding this. Healthwatch Staffordshire 
attended CCG Quality Committees, NHS England Quality Assurance Boards and 
Quality and Safety Sharing meetings. It would be good to feed through the information 



 

- 12 - 
 

gathered to the Committee as well as the information received from the public. 
Healthwatch Staffordshire could support the Committee in undertaking thematic reviews. 
 
The Research and Insight Manager, Healthwatch Staffordshire referred to the gathering 
of intelligence through the Experience Exchange, Social Media, the advocacy service 
and through different engagement events. 
 
A Member suggested that it might be helpful to call to account providers and 
commissioners at the same time. Having input from commissioners would be interesting 
as they were commissioning on behalf of residents. It was suggested that one member 
of the relevant CCG should be in attendance at the meetings. 
 
The Scrutiny and Support Manager confirmed that the CCGs had been invited through a 
call for evidence to contribute to the sessions when they were initially timetabled but had 
not done so. 
 
The Chief Executive, Healthwatch Staffordshire confirmed that the behaviour of 
providers was impacted by the CCGs. Healthwatch also attended the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the Accident and Emergency Delivery Boards. 
 
A Member expressed concern regarding the Committee’s workload and scrutiny 
processes. It was suggested that the workload should be manageable and that areas for 
scrutiny should be highlighted. It was queried why a presentation was required in 
addition to the Self-Assessment report if Members had read their papers and suggested 
that additional information should not be encouraged. Rather than the Work Programme 
focussing on single items, the greater use of Working Groups was suggested. Time 
constraints on the agenda and that the Work Programme should be one of the first items 
on the agenda to be discussed was suggested.  
 
The Chair expressed concerns that there were not the resources to support sub 
Committees of the Committee.  The suggestion of sub Committees was not supported 
by another Member who referred to information in one area applying to other areas. 
Presentations were needed as they reinforced the information within the reports. 
 
A Member did not welcome the idea of time constraints as these could constrain 
debates. District and Borough Councils should deal with local issues. Presentations 
were needed. 
 
Referring to the STP, a Member suggested that this might be done by the District and 
Boroughs as different places would be effected differently. The Chair however was clear 
that scrutiny of the STP should be undertaken by the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee. This was clear following the Francis Inquiry. Only the County Council could 
make referrals to the Secretary of State for Health. 
 
The Scrutiny and Support Manager referred to the Joint Code of Working which was 
very clear on where responsibility for scrutiny lay. Where services were being delivered 
in more than one District or Borough then the County Council must take the lead in 
undertaking scrutiny.  
 



 

- 13 - 
 

The Member acknowledged the importance of understanding the bigger picture and 
expressed concerns that there would be local criticism about lack of scrutiny. 
 
Another Member stated that they were happy for the Borough Committee to consider 
specific local issues whilst the County Council consider the wider issues. It was 
suggested that Accountability Session presentations, focussed on work going forward 
and that Trust, CCG and Healthwatch representatives had an opportunity to contribute 
and ask questions. 
 
A Member referred to work undertaken in South Staffordshire regarding breast feeding 
screening over borders and highlighted the importance of the CCGs being held to 
account. 
 
The Chair confirmed that the views of the Committee would be complied and that the 
Committee could add to this by sending comments and suggestions regarding the way 
forward to the Scrutiny and Support Manager.  
 
RESOLVED:- That; 

 Any additional views regarding the future of Joint Health Scrutiny Accountability 
Sessions be shared with the Scrutiny and Support Manager. 

 That at the first meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee in the 
municipal year 2017-18 that the Committee consider the comments of Members 
on the Joint Health Scrutiny Accountability Session in determining the future of 
them.  

 
106. District and Borough Committee Updates 
 
The report was received and considered.  
 
107. Work Programme 
 
The Work Programme was accepted.  
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Joint Meeting of Active and Cohesive and Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - 6 March 2017
	4 Dementia Friendly Swimming Action Plan
	5 Minutes of previous meeting of Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
	6 Minutes from the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee

